










September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

City Staff Present: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

June 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the June 4, 2019 meeting minutes.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0)

July 2, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the July 2, 2019 meeting minutes.



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 8

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously.

August 6, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the August 6, 2019 minutes as presented.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Evi Buell.

*Motion passed unanimously.

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 7-19, filed
by Petersen Holdings LLC, which would allow for the development of a facility that
provides maintenance and repairs to automobiles within a C (General Commercial)
Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south corner of the intersection of
12th Street and Railroad Street. (285 12th Street & 1120 Railroad Street - APN 001-
363-003 & 001-363-006)

Chuck Petersen, Big O Tires, 330 11th Street, explained that they have been working on this
project, have gone back and forth with it for a couple of years, and have decided to press
forward. They are wanting to build a new facility, an addition to their Big O Business for more
bays, storage, and parking. The area that it’s in is in the Redevelopment Area, which Mr.
Petersen wasn’t aware of. They needed to meet certain requirements. There was a Special RDA
meeting last Friday, in which everyone voted in favor to approve the project.

Chairman Jeff Dalling asked Mr. Petersen to explain what he was planning to do with the empty
lot.

A rendering was shown on the overhead.

Mr. Petersen explained that the Planning Department thought that they wanted them to spruce up
the building a little bit more. Mr. Petersen said he had been reluctant. One of the reasons was
cost. He knew that it wasn’t a City issue, it is more of a business issue. To go to the bank and get
financing for projects like this, you have to have a set of plans, they have to be appraised, and it
all has to be paid for up front. Mr. Petersen said he had already paid for a Phase 1 and 2. A lot of
upfront costs have gone into this project. Part of the problem is that it doesn’t appraise for what it
is going to cost to build it. It appraises for $200,000 less than it is going to cost. He felt that it
was going to be advantageous to his business. His family is from Elko and they have done a lot
in the community. They love to do things in the community, but they have to make sense. The



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 8

other reason Mr. Petersen thought that this building was a good fit was Al Park, Napa Auto Parts,
11th St. Deli, a church, and the Oil Company are all older metal buildings. In this particular area,
this is the last piece of dirt that is really developable, so they feel what they proposed really fits
the location and what they are willing to do to enhance the area. They’ve already torn down an
older building on this lot, and they are also planning to demo the building behind their main
building. In the last 8 months they have spent $200,000 on remodeling the original Big O Tires
with new stucco, painting, interior, and repaving the parking lot. They are trying to enhance that
area as much as possible within reason. There’s another building behind the main building that is
a service center, it has been repainted to match the main building, and the new building will
match as well. They were hoping for the support of the Planning Commission, as they had the
support of the RDA.

Chairman Dalling asked if they were going to be doing a zero scape for the landscaping.

Mr. Petersen said it would be more of a zero scape, and not the grass. It will be the same as the
car wash; big rocks, nice rocks, shrubs, and trees with it all being irrigated.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated July 25, 2019.
She recommended if the Planning Commission were to approve the application that they include
the condition and findings from the RDA’s recommendation. (Exhibit A)

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, said as Ms. Laughlin mentioned, staff felt the
application did not comply with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan. Staff still
has concerns about that. Because the site is in the Redevelopment Area, which is aimed to lift the
area up and make it better overtime. It is not an overnight process, it is a 25 to 30 year process.
The metal buildings that are there, probably won’t be there in 30 years. They will be replaced
with something else. There are incentives within the Redevelopment Plan to promote that. Staff
also has concerns with setting a precedent. If we aren’t going to follow the Redevelopment Plan
what does that do for future developers that come in and not want to follow the Redevelopment
Plan? The Redevelopment Agency recommended approval for this application, but the Planning
Commission can disagree if they decide to.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, had no additional comments or concerns.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had no major concerns. They will need to follow the 2018
International Fire Code. He also mentioned that it would be nice to have the accessory building
taken down because of violations in the past. It would be nice to see something new and looking
better in that area.

Ms. Laughlin read the Assistant City Manager’s and City Managers comments into the record
from the Staff Flow Sheets that were included in the Agenda Packet.

Chairman Dalling explained that Mr. Petersen reached out to him and asked for his opinion. Mr.
Dalling went out and walked the site with Mr. Petersen. Mr. Petersen showed him the project and
that they would be getting rid of the blight of the abandoned lot and taking down the extra shop.
Mr. Dalling looked at the project and thought it was a good fit for the downtown. He also went to
the RDA meeting and voiced his support for the project, along with Lina Blohm. Technically,
this property is right on the edge of the RDA. Mr. Dalling thought the development would make



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 8

the lot look that much nicer. It is a metal building that is not gussied up, but it will look nice and
fit well with where it’s at.

Commissioner Evi Buell asked if the concerns were entirely restricted to the type of business.
She asked if the type of business could be modified to fit the Redevelopment Goals.

Ms. Rambo explained that the issue wasn’t with the business. The issue is with the architecture
of the building. Staff asked to see some small details, like an overhang or some awnings that pop
out farther from the building. Staff doesn’t have a problem with the metal building as a base.
Metal buildings can be very attractive if details are added to them.

Ms. Laughlin explained that staff told Mr. Petersen if he had the car wash proposed here; there
would be no conversation about any of this. The car wash is a great looking building, with great
details, and if fits into the RDA Plan. If this building was being proposed in the Redevelopment
Area outside of the Central Business District, then we wouldn’t be having this conversation
either. The key element is within the Redevelopment Plan the Central Business District is a
defined area that has specific guidelines.

Commissioner Buell asked if this was a judgement call on what is meeting those architectural
standards.

Ms. Laughlin said it is. Staff looked at the building itself and the first plan we received didn’t
have any details on the buildings colors. Staff asked for elevations as part of the application.
They said they were changing the band at the bottom from white to grey. Staff looked at it as
there is no overhang, there are two windows and a door, and it’s just a four sided, single slope
metal building.

Commissioner Stefan Beck understood that there was a need for an RDA. He asked if there was
a way, without interfering with the rules and regulations of the RDA, to compromise.

Ms. Laughlin explained that the Redevelopment Agency gave Mr. Petersen a variance for
meeting the Plan.

Mr. Petersen reiterated that the property was in a unique area of the downtown with it being on
the edge of the Redevelopment. He stated that he was for redevelopment. If this lot was more in
the downtown, he wouldn’t be here asking do to what he was trying to do. As a businessperson
you have to weigh the pros and cons. Most of the property is going to be paving. The RDA is
giving Stockmen’s $100,000 to redo a parking lot. Mr. Petersen wasn’t asking for that. Mr.
Petersen said he wasn’t going to do any more to the building than what he was proposing.

Chairman Dalling asked what was over the windows and doors on the rendering of the building.

Mr. Petersen said they were the eyebrows.

Chairman Dalling asked if Mr. Petersen was willing to put an awning on the front instead of the
eyebrows.

There was further discussion regarding an awning versus the eyebrows.



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 8

Mr. Petersen stated that he didn’t want it looking too much like a store front, because this won’t
be the storefront; the other Big O Building is the storefront.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman asked if the only reason for this was so that the building was more
aesthetically pleasing.

Ms. Laughlin said it was because the building is in the Central Business District.

Commissioner Hooiman asked if the reason this application was in front of them was because
they want the building to be more aesthetically pleasing.

Ms. Laughlin explained that it is required for any auto repair facility within the Commercial
District to have a Conditional Use Permit. A Conditional Use Permit can have conditions added
to it that are above and beyond what the code requires. That’s why there is a condition about the
landscaping.

Chairman Dalling said Mr. Petersen was already make a reasonable compromise on the
landscaping, since he isn’t required to put any in.

Ms. Laughlin told the Commissioners to keep in mind that this is a standalone building. Mr.
Petersen doesn’t plan on selling it, but you never know. Today we don’t want it to be large
storefront, but 10 years from now there may be a need for that.

Mr. Petersen pointed out that the Redevelopment Agency approved this unanimously. He
thought that should carry a lot of weight.

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 7-19 subject to the
conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated July 25, 2019 and the condition from the
Redevelopment Agency, listed as follows:

1. The conditional use permit is granted to the property owner allowing for the
development of a businesses with facilities for repairing or maintaining
automobiles.

2. The permit shall be personal to the property owner and applicable only to the
specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to
another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use,
signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in
connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall
thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance
with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

3. The conditional use permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one year
from the date of its issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in
developing the specific property in use for which the permit was issued.

4. Landscaping is required along 12th Street and Railroad Street. The landscaping
may include, but is not limited to, screen planting, lawns, trees, shrubs, fences
and walls. Drought tolerant, low maintenance species, in conjunction with



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 8

decorative hard surface materials may also be used. All landscaping shall be
maintained in a manner acceptable to the City of Elko at all times.

5. The Conditional Use Permit is to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder
within 90 days after the commencement of construction.

6. Access to the property from 12th Street shall be limited to right in, right out.
Public Works would like to see the median curb extended to Silver for safety
reasons or a pork chop style median installed at the driveway to only allow for
the right in right out turn movements on 12th street.

7. No outside storage of materials is allowed unless it is behind screen-wall or
fencing. The screen fencing must have a 95% or better visibility blockage.

8. On street storage of vehicles is prohibited.
9. Applicant will be responsible to maintain cleanliness at all times.
10. Parcel map 4-18 must be recorded prior to issuance of a building permit.

Redevelopment Agency Condition:
1. The building behind Big O Tires be torn down within 6 months after a Certificate

of Occupancy is issued for the proposed building.

Commissioner Hooiman’s findings to support the motion were the proposed development is
in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed
development is in conformance with the existing transportation infrastructure and the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The proposed conditional use permit is not
in conformance with goals and objectives listed in the Redevelopment Plan. The site is
suitable for the proposed use. The proposed development is in conformance with the City
Wellhead Protection Program. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-10(B) General Commercial with
the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. The proposed development is in conformance
with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8, and 3-2-18 of the Elko City Code.  The project will reduce
blight in the immediate area, encourage investment, and would enhance the area. It is a
better development that what is there. Permitting a variation will not be materially
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in the area.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by John Anderson.

*Motion passed (6-1, Commissioner Buell Voted No).

II. NEW BUSINESS

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration and possible action on a transfer of Conditional Use Permit
No. 8-95 to a new permittee, filed by Elko Endodontics, PLLC, which would allow
for a dental office within an R (Single-Family and Multi-Family) Zoning District,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The location of said property is generally on the east corner of the intersection of
Elm Street and 6th Street. (1260 6th Street – APN 001-065-002).



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 8

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 15, 2019. Staff
recommended conditional approval with the conditions and findings in the staff report.

Chairman Dalling asked about Condition No. 2. No exterior lighting signs permitted.

Ms. Laughlin explained that was a condition from the original Conditional Use Permit.
Whenever you transfer a Conditional Use Permit the original conditions must continue.

Ms. Rambo had no comments.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval

Mr. Holmes had no comments.

Ms. Laughlin stated that the City Manager’s office had no comments or concerns.

***Motion: Approve the transfer of Conditional Use Permit No. 8-95 subject to the
conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 15, 2019, listed as follows:

Original CUP 8-95 Conditions:

1. Business hours to be approximately 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
2. No exterior lighting signs permitted.
3. The development must meet fire department requirements.

Planning Department Conditions:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant, Elko Endodontics PLLC, for 1260 6th

Street for the use of a dental office.
2. The transfer of CUP 8-95 shall be recorded with the Elko County Recorder’s

office within 60 days after approval.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the existing conditional use
permit is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The existing
conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The
proposed use, intensity of use, and limitations of intensity of use will not create any
significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. The transfer of
Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan. The transfer
of the existing conditional use permit is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City Code.
The existing conditional use permit is not in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(3) of City
Code. With the filing of the application for the transfer from permittee to new owner, the
applicant is in conformance with Section 3-2-18 of City Code. The property as developed is
in conformance with City Code Section 3-2-17 for off street parking requirements.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0)



September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 8

III. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that City Council approved a Curb, Gutter, and Sidewalk waiver
for Andrew Knudsen for the Sundance Mini Storage. They also approved and did the 2nd

Reading for Ord. 842, which was the Public Way Ordinance. City Council approved a
resolution for the Rezone of the Lambert property.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there was an RDA Meeting in August. They reappointed
members of the RAC and approved an additional Storefront Grant Application. They also
funded the Art Spot Reno for $10,000 for a donation to the mural festival. They approved
the 2020 budget. They also entered into a Public Private Partnership with Northern
Nevada Asset Holdings, the owners of Stockmen’s, for the completion of the parking lot.
They approved $99,999, which is about 1/3 of the total cost of the project, which will
include lighting, landscaping, and infrastructure.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 9/11/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

4-19, filed by Elko West Properties LLC, for a change in zoning from PC (Planned 

Commercial) to C (General Commercial), approximately 60.75 acres of property, to 

allow for multi-family residential and commercial development, and matters related 

thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located generally on the south side of 

Errecart Boulevard, approximately 545’ west of Lamoille Highway. Developer is 

proposing an apartment development and remainder to be commercial 

development. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 4-19 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated September 11, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated September 11, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko West Properties LLC 

c/o Jon Bailey 

780 West Silver Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com  

 

 





Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
MEMO DATE:    September 11, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 1, 2019 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Rezone 4-19 

APPLICANT: Elko West Properties LLC 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone amendment from PC to C  

ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: CUP 8-19  

 

 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report. 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



REZONE  4-19 
Elko West Properties LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 2 of 5 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
PARCEL NUMBER: 001-770-004 

 

PARCEL SIZE:    60.75 acres 

 

EXISTING ZONING: PC- Planned Commercial 

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (COMM-HWY) Commercial Highway 

 

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

• North: Planned Commercial (PC) / Partially developed   

• West: Residential (R) / Undeveloped 

• South: Elko County / Undeveloped  

• East:  Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped. 
• The area has moderately sloping. 
• The area is accessed from Errecart Blvd. 

 
MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts  
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-10 Commercial Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments 
• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The property is owned by Elko West Properties LLC. 

2. The rezone includes all of APN 001-770-004. 

3. The area fronts Errecart Boulevard. 

4. City utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.  

5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area. 

6. The application for rezone is based on an application for a Conditional Use Permit for the 

development of apartments.  



REZONE  4-19 
Elko West Properties LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 3 of 5 

 
MASTER PLAN: 
 
Land use: 

 
1. Land Use is shown as Commercial Highway.  
2. Supporting zone districts for Commercial Highway are Planned Commercial (PC), 

General Commercial (C), Convenience Commercial (CC) an Industrial Commercial (IC). 
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 
4. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of 

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods. 
5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide 

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.  

 
The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

 
Transportation: 

 
1. The area will be accessed from Errecart Boulevard.    
2. Errecart Boulevard is classified in the Transportation Component as a minor arterial with 

it being a major arterial once roadway is connected. 
 

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan 
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.   

 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 
The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. 
 
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

 
1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.  

 
The proposed zone district is in conformance with wellhead protection plan.   
 
SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts: 
 

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or 
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally 
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the 
district in which it is located. 
 

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered: 
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan; 
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this 
chapter; 
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces, 
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this 
chapter. 



REZONE  4-19 
Elko West Properties LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 4 of 5 

 
3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space, 

provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open 
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building. 
 

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area 
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area 
requirements for the proposed zone district. 

 
The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B). 
 
SECTION 3-2-10 (B) – General Commercial District 
 

1. As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with Section 3-2-10 
(B). 
 

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-10 (B). 
 

SECTION 3-2-21: 
 
The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application. 
 
SECTION 3-8: 
 
The proposed zone district is partially located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area 
(SFHA).  As the property develops, conformance with Section 3-8 will be required. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 
 

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.  
 

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. 
 

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead 
Protection Plan. 

 
5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B). 

 
6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-10(B). 

 
7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21. 

 
8. The proposed zone district is partially located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area 

(SFHA).  

 
9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems, 



REZONE  4-19 
Elko West Properties LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 5 of 5 

or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a 
danger to human health and safety. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends this item be APPROVED with the following condition: 
 

1. Modify the legal description and display map to include the land to the centerline of the 
adjacent rights-of-way. 
  

 
 
 

 





















Agenda Item # I.A.2 

Created on 6/26/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 8-

19, filed by Elko West Properties, LLC., which would allow for the development of 

an apartment complex within a C (General Commercial) Zoning District, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The subject property is located generally on the south side 

of Errecart Boulevard, approximately 545’ west of Lamoille Highway. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 8-19 

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated 

September 13, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated September 13, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko West Properties LLC 

c/o Jon Bailey 

780 West Silver Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com  

 

 

 





Page 1 of 8 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     September 13, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 1, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  I.A.2 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Conditional Use Permit 8-19 

APPLICANT:    Elko West Properties, LLC 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Development of 107 Multi-Family Apartment 

Units and 1 clubhouse / office unit 

RELATED APPLICATIONS: REZ 4-19 

  

A Conditional Use Permit for the development of 107 multi-family apartment units and 1 

clubhouse / office unit within a C – General Commercial zoning district. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 2 of 8 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

PARCEL NUMBER:   A portion of 001-770-004 

 

PROPERTY SIZE: 60.75 acres  

 

EXISTING ZONING: PC – Planned Commercial, Rezone 4-19 will be 

reviewed for possible approval at the October 1, 

2019 Planning Commission meeting to amend this 

property zoning to C – General Commercial  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  (COMM-HWY) Highway Commercial 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Undeveloped 

 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

• North: PC- Planned Commercial / Developed  

• East: AG, General Agriculture / Undeveloped 

• West: R- Residential  / Undeveloped  

• South: County Single Family Residential / Undeveloped 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped. 
• The area is generally slopes from south to the north, with several topographic challenges 
• Only a portion of the property is within the 5400 water zone and can be serviced with 

water at this time.  
• The area is accessed from Errecart Boulevard. 

 
APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-10 General Commercial District (C) 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 

• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 3 of 8 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

• APN 001-770-004 is owned by Elko West Properties, LLC  

• The rezone applicant submitted with this application includes all of APN 001-770-004. 

• The area fronts Errecart Boulevard.  

• Only a portion of the property can currently be served by City of Elko water due to 

elevation of the properties. The property can be served by City of Elko sewer and other 

non-city utilities. 

• The proposed development includes 107 apartment units in 9 buildings, 3 stories high, 

with one additional unit for the rental office, community center and maintenance room. 

 

MASTER PLAN 

 

Land Use 

 
1. Land Use is shown as Highway Commercial. 
2. Supporting zone districts for Highway Commercial include C, General Commercial. 
3. The proposed use of the property is allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use 

Permit.  
4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.  
5. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of 

the region, the community and individual neighborhoods. 
6. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide 

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.  

 
The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan  
 

Transportation 

 
1. The area will be accessed from Errecart Boulevard.  
2. Errecart Boulevard is identified as a Minor Arterial, and a Major Arterial once the road is 

connected from east to west.  

The proposed conditional use permit is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation 
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.   

 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 

 

• The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for several City wells. 

 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area. 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 4 of 8 

 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 

shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 

principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 

this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, 

design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by 

the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land 

is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason 

of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 

extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features 

likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The 

planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing 

the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the 

right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she 

so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the 

determination of unsuitability.” 
 
The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in 

conformance with this section of code.  

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 

in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 

uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 

be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 

The proposed development with the approval of Rezone 4-19 conforms to Section 3-2-4 of the 

City Code. 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 5 of 8 

 

SECTION 3-2-10-B-GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C)  

 

1. Section 3-2-10(B)(4)-Conditional Uses Permitted- Residential Uses. Multiple-family 

residential developments which contain five (5) or more units located on a single lot or 

parcel; townhouse or condominium or attached housing developments. Residential uses 

must meet the setback standards in subsection 3-2-5(G) and development standards 

applicable to multiple family residential developments set forth in 3-2-5(E)-6 of this 

chapter.  

 

2. Section 3-2-5(G) The minimum setback standards for multi-family dwellings shall be the 

following.  

 

• Front Yard: 15 feet, 20 feet for a garage 

• Interior Side Yard: 7 feet 

• Exterior Side Yard: 15 feet 

• Rear Yard: 20 feet 

 

3. Section 3-2-5-(E)-6 The following development standards for multiple-family residential 

developments shall apply. 

o  The minimum distance between the opposing exterior walls of detached buildings, 

or parts of attached or semi-attached building, on the same lot, shall be:  

� If both walls are front walls, or contain main entrances or living room 

windows: thirty feet (30’) 

� If one wall is a front wall, or contains a main entrance or living room 

windows, and one wall is a side or rear wall containing no doors or 

windows, twenty four feet (24’) 

� If both walls are side or rear walls containing windows or secondary 

entrances, twenty four feet (24’) 

� If one wall is a side or rear wall containing windows or secondary 

entrances and one wall contains no doors or windows, eighteen feet (18’) 

� If neither wall contains windows or doors, ten feet (10’) 

o If the front of a building, or part thereof, faces on an interior side or rear lot line, 

the building, or that part thereof, shall be set back from such lot lines not less than 

twenty feet (20’) 

o When, for the purposes of sale or separate ownership, a two-family or multi-family 

dwelling and the land in and upon which such dwellings are situated, is to be 

subdivide into separate lots having one dwelling unit per lot, such lots shall be 

exempt from all interior side yard requirements.  

 

Dimensions showing the separation of the buildings have been provided, it does appear that the 

minimum separation between buildings on a single lot is met for the apartment buildings. The 

proposed development is required to conform to this section of city code. 3-2-10(B). 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 6 of 8 

 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

 

• It would appear that the multi-family apartment buildings exceed the required parking of 

one and one half (1 ½) parking spaces per dwelling unit. 162 stalls are required and 174 

parking stalls are provided including the 21 enclosed garage parking stalls. 

• Conformance with this section is required 

 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

 

General Regulations: 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter, 

other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the 

Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be 

issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 

automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the 

permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 

the permit was issued. 

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 

to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 

Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 

owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 

zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 

been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with 

the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well 

as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the 

property owner. 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 

Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 

event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 

conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 

1. Approximately 15,880 sq. ft. of the parcel is located in a designated Special Flood Hazard 
Area (SFHA).  

2. The applicant is not proposing any development in the area which is designated Special 
Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

3. The proposed dedicated right-of-way will separate the designated Special Flood Hazard 
area from the parcel in which is proposed for the apartment development. 

 
As the property develops, conformance with Section 3-8 will be required. 

 

FINDINGS 

 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 7 of 8 

• The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master 

Plan 

• The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation 

infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan 

• The site is suitable for the proposed use. 

• The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 

• The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

• The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-10 (B) General Commercial 

district, the proposed use meets the required separation of dwelling units as found in City 

Code 3-2-5-(E)-6.   

• The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of 

the Elko City Code.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 8-19 with the following conditions: 

1. The CUP 8-19 shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the submitted 

application conforming to the exhibits as presented. 

2. The Errecart Boulevard right-of-way is to be landscaped. A landscape plan will be required 

for submittal and approval. All landscaping shall include a combination of trees and shrubs. 

Landscaping shall be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the 

intersections. The landscape plan is to include features which create a “front” for the 

development adjacent to Errecart Boulevard and should be similar in nature to the 

landscaping along the north side of Errecart Boulevard. Owner or developer is to provide 

such maintenance and care as is required to obtain the effect intended by the original 

landscape plan for the development. 

3. CUP 8-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after 

commencement of work. 

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee, Elko West Properties, LLC. and applicable 

only to the specific use of multiple family residential and to the specific property for which 

it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional 

use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, 

signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with 

the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable 

and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by 

the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the 

responsibility of the property owner. 

5. Civil improvement plans are required for review and possible approval. Civil 

improvements are required on all frontages. No on-street parking will be allowed on 

Errecart Boulevard or the Unnamed right-of-way. 

6. No RV storage allowed. 

7. Building #1 which includes the clubhouse /office shall be completed prior to the issuance 

of any certificate of occupancy for any other buildings. 

8. All parking lot lighting is to be shielded or cut-off design. 



CUP 8-19 
Elko West Properties, LLC 

APN: 001-770-004 

 

  Page 8 of 8 

9. An illumination schedule is required to ensure lighting is adequate for safety with minimal 

impact to adjacent properties. 

10. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or kiosks in association with this 

complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain internal to the complex 

11. The sidewalk adjacent to Errecart Boulevard shall be offset. 

12. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas and shall be similar 

to what is presented in the application.   

13. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.  

14. The applicant shall file a parcel map for the proposed parcels shown in the application. 

Such parcel map shall be approved and recorded prior to certificate of occupancy on any 

building. 
 
Development Department Conditions: 
 
1. Provide 250 feet between the Golden Health Clinic driveway and this project's driveway on 

Errecart. 
2. Full street improvements needed for both Errecart and unnamed new road. 
3. Recommend moving the detention basin out of the flood plain and instead utilize 

landscaped areas and/or other capturing methods. 
4. Provide a crosswalk across Errecart to facilitate pedestrian movement to the north along 

Lamoille Highway. 
5. No traffic study required. 
 
Engineering Department Conditions: 
 
1. The northerly driveway must be a dedicated street to service adjacent parcels. 
2. Grading onto adjacent parcels will not be permitted. 
3. A culvert will be required under the southerly driveway 
4. Per 3-2-17, 3.c.2, increase the spacing between the southerly driveway and the intersection 

across the street to a minimum of 250', measured centerline to centerline. Errecart Blvd. is 
a minor arterial. 

5. Office building shall be constructed as part of the first phase of construction. 
6. Extend curb and sidewalk along the northerly part of the frontage. 
7. Provide curb and sidewalk on both sides of the dedicated street that will be the northerly 

driveway. 
8. Provide site lighting information. 

 

Utility Department Conditions: 

 

1. Project will need to be water/sewer code compliant. 

2. Water main will need to be extended on access easement/dedicated right-of-way as well. 

 
Fire Department Conditions: 
1. No Concerns 

 

 
 





















ELKO                ELKO COUNTY                NEVADA

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

a. ALL WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED BY A PROPERLY
LICENSED CONTRACTOR.

b. IN GENERAL HYDRANTS SHOULD BE LOCATED A
MINIMUM DISTANCE OF SIX FEET FROM ABOVE GROUND
UTILITIES.

c. WATER TAPS ONTO THE WATER MAIN ARE TO BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH CITY DETAIL U-12.1

d. WATER TAPS ONTO THE WATER MAIN ARE TO BE A
MIMUMUM OF SIX FEET FROM HYDRANT TAPS

e. ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES ARE NOT PERMITTED WITHIN
THE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

f. THE OWNER WILL PROVIDE AN AS-BUILT TO THE CITY
OF ELKO. THE AS-BUILT WILL INCLUDE ALL RELEVANT
QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL
INFORMATION AND BE STAMPED BY A PROPERLY
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER.

g. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE STAMPED, AGENCY
APPROVED PLANS, SET OF PLANS AT THE WORK SITE
SURING CONSTRUCTION. CONSTRUCTION SHALL NOT
PROCEED UNTIL THIS SET OF PLANS IS ISSUED WITH
INCLUDED REVISIONS AND COMMENTS MADE BY THE
AGENCIES.

h. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A 24-HOUR DUST
CONTROL PROGRAM INCLUDING WATERING OF OPEN
AREAS. DUST CONTROL PROGRAM SHALL BE IN
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY AND
CITY CODES AND ORDINANCES.

i. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AN ONGOING
PROCESS FOR REMOVAL OF SPILLAGE OF EXCAVATED
MATERIAL ON ALL PAVED STREETS.

j. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE LATEST EDITION OF THE “STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS & DETAILS FOR PUBLIC WORKS
CONSTRUCTION”.

k. ALL AREAS DISTURBED AND LEFT UNDEVELOPED FOR A
PERIOD OF MORE THAN 30 DAYS SHALL BE STABILIZED
BY THE APPLICATION OF A DUST PALLIATIVE. ALL
AREAS LEFT UNDEVELOPED FOR A PERIOD OF MORE
THAN 90 DAYS SHALL BE HYRO-SEEDED WITH AN
APPROVED SEED MIX AND TACKIFIER AND SHALL BE
IRRIGATED UNTIL FIRMLY ESTABLISHED AS APPROVED
BY THE CITY OF ELKO.

l. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY IN THE FIELD, ALL
ELEVATIONS, DIMENSIONS, FLOW LINES, EXISTING
CONDITIONS, AND POINTS OF CONNECTIONS WITH
ADJOINING PROPERTY (PUBLIC OR PRIVATE), ANY
DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE CALLED TO THE ATTENTION
OF THE PROJECT ENGINEER BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH
THE WORK.

m. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL WORK WITH THE PROJECT
ENGINEER TO ENSURE AN ACCURATE AS-BUILT CAN BE
GENERATED AND SUBMITTED TO THE CITY OF ELKO BY
THE PROJECT ENGINEER.

n. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE PROJECT
ENGINEER, THE SOILS ENGINEER, THE CITY OF ELKO,
AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES 48 HOURS PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

o. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY
AND ALL DAMAGE TO THE EXISTING UTILITIES
ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION. IT SHALL BE
THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT THE
UTILITY COMPANIES FOR LOCATIONS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL
LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL UNDERGROUND
SERVICES ALERT AT 1.800.227.2600 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.

p. ALL UTILITY TRENCHES SHALL CONFORM TO SIERRA
PACIFIC POWER, ORANGE BROADBAND LLC, FRONTIER
COMMUNICATIONS, AND SOUTHWEST GAS
SPECIFICATIONS. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE
INSTALLATION OF ALL UTILITY TRENCHES WITH LOCAL
UTILITIES.

q. CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN AND PAY FOR PERMITS FROM
THE CITY OF ELKO PRIOR TO EXCAVATING WITHIN THE
CITY RIGHT OF WAY.

r. AT ALL POINTS WHERE SEWER (SANITARY OR STORM),
WATER MAINS AND LATERALS CROSS, VERTICAL AND
HORIZONTAL SEPARATION SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER
NAC. ENGINEER AND CONTRACTOR TO REFERENCE
SECTION 445A.6715 TO SECTION 445A.6718 OF THE
NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE FOR UTILITY
SEPARATION AND CLEARANCES.

s. ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINS SHALL BE 8” SDR 35 PVC
(GREEN) PIPE. ALL RESIDENTIAL SANITARY SEWER
LATERALS SHALL BE 4” SDR 35 PVC PIPE WITH A 2%
SLOPE MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN. ALL
COMMERCIAL SANITARY SEWER LATERALS SHALL BE
6” SDR 35 PVC PIPE WITH A 2% SLOPE MINIMUM UNLESS
OTHERWISE SHOWN.

t. ALL WATER MAINS SHALL BE 10” DIAMETER, THICKNESS
CLASS 50 OR PRESSURE CLASS 350 DUCTILE IRON PIPE,
WITH POLYETHYLENE ENCASEMENT, OR DR 18 C900 PVC
PIPE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

u. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO BE AWWA C-600 OR AWWA C-605
COMPLIANT AS APPR0PRIATE. REFERENCE AWWA M55

v.MINIMUM COVER OVER THE WATER MAIN SHALL BE 42”.
w.THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITY DEPARTMENT SHALL BE

CONTACTED TO PERFORM ALL TAPS ONTO CITY OF
ELKO UTILITIES.

x. ALL WATER MAINS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH
LOCATER WIRE AND MARKING TAPE.

y. THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITY DEPARTMENT SHALL BE
CONTACTED FOR AUTHORIZATION TO PLACE ANY NEW
WATER SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN
EXISTING SYSTEMS AND VALVED SECTIONS INTO
SERVICE FOR TESTING OR FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

z. ALL WATER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE 1” IRON PIPE SIZE
(IPS) RATED 200 PSI POLYETHYLENE UNLESS OTHERWISE
SHOWN.

bb. BEFORE BEING CERTIFIED BY AN ENGINEER OR
ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF ELKO,  ANY NEW WATER
SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN EXISTING
SYSTEMS AND VALVED SECTIONS SHALL BE
DISINFECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA C-651,
“DISINFECTING WATER MAINS”.

cc. BEFORE BEING CERTIFIED BY AN ENGINEER OR
ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF ELKO,  ANY NEW WATER
SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN EXISTING
SYSTEMS AND VALVED SECTIONS SHALL BE PRESSURE
TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NAC445A.67145.
REFERENCE AWWA M55.

dd. BEFORE BEING CERTIFIED BY AN ENGINEER OR
ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF ELKO,  ANY NEW SEWER
SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN EXISTING
SYSTEMS SHALL BE PRESSURE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
WORKS CONSTRUCTION; LATEST EDITION

ee. A TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN SHALL BE PROVIDED BY
THE CONTRACTOR AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF
ELKO PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

ff.GRADING AROUND BUILDINGS TO BE DONE IN A
MANNER AS TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY
FROM BUILDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF ELKO
REQUIREMENTS.

gg. ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE COMPLIANT WITH SECTION
337.10 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
WORKS CONSTRUCTION, 2012 EDITION AND SHALL BE A
CITY APPROVED MIX DESIGN.

hh. ALL WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS ARE TO BE TESTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA STANDARD C651 
REQUIRING TWO SETS OF CONSECUTIVE SAMPLES AT
LEAST 24 HOURS APART FROM THE END OF THE LINE
AND EACH BRANCH.  PLEASE COORDINATE WATER
DISPOSAL WITH CLIFF LAWSON, PE clawson@ndep.nv.gov
(NDEP-BWPC) 775-687-9414.

hi. WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE UNDER
CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE SEALED AT DAYS END
REFERENCE NAC 445A.67145 SUBSECTION 8.

hj. THE OWNER/DEVELOPER IS TO PROVIDE THE
APPROPRIATE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THE
QUALIFIED ENGINEER AND ENGINEERING FIRM
CONTRACTED TO OVERSEE THE PROJECT ALONG WITH
THE REQUIRED INSPECTION AND TESTING NESCESSARY
TO PRODUCE AN AS-BUILT FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE CITY
OF ELKO.  THE ENGINEER OF RECORD IS TO ENSURE ALL
MATERIALS MEET THE LATEST EDITION STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS. ALL
RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS ARE TO
BE CERTIFIED BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD FOR THE
PROJECT.  A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCE WILL NOT BE
ISSUED UNTIL THE CITY OF ELKO HAS RECEIVED THE
REQUIRED AS-BUILT CERTIFICATION FROM THE
ENGINEER OF RECORD FOR THE PROJECT.

CIVIL ENGINEER

BAILEY ENGINEERING PLLC

NV P.E. LIC #17979

(775) 385-3659

SURVEYOR

SUMMIT ENGINEERING

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER

SUMMIT ENGINEERING

OWNER:

ELKO WEST PROPERTIES LLC

780 W SILVER ST #104

ELKO, NV 89801

1150 Lamoille Hwy

Elko, NV 89801

775-738-8058

1150 Lamoille Hwy

Elko, NV 89801

775-738-8058

CONTRACTOR:

BAILEY & ASSOCIATES  LLC

780 W SILVER ST #104

ELKO, NV 89801

(775) 777-7773

(775) 777-7773

BASIS OF BEARINGS

THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR

THIS MAP IS THE NEVADA STATE

PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM,

NAD 83/94 USING ELKO CITY

ENGINEERING

DEPARTMENT CONTROL POINTS

"5029" AND "5027", WITH A

BEARING OF SOUTH 87°37'53"

EAST. THIS SURVEY WAS

CONDUCTED IN GROUND

COORDINATES, USING A GROUND

SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000357

BASIS OF ELEVATION

PROJECT BENCHMARK:

PROJECT DATUM: NORTH

AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF

1988 (NAVD88)

CITY OF ELKO CONTROL POINT:

5000 “CP SUMMIT”

NAVD88 ELEVATION: 1551.80

METERS (5091.21 FEET)

SITE

JUNIPER RIDGE APARTMENTS

C1

TITLE SHEET

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

4

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 9
-
1

0
-
2

0
1

9

- A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

J
U

N
I
P

E
R

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

C
O

N
D

I
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
U

S
E

 
P

E
R

M
I
T

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-



1

8

"

 

W

8

"

 

Ø

 

S

S

8

"

 

Ø

 

S

S

8" 45° DI BEND

10" 45° DI BEND

10" TO 8" REDUCER

8

"

 

Ø

 

W

I

-

P

V

C

4

8

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 
C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

2

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

2

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 

Ø

 

D

I

 

W

L

1

8

"

 

Ø

 

D

I

 

W

L

ARV

3

4

  POLY

-6.70

-6.88'

-5.44

-12.38

-11.71

MATCHLINE SEE SHEET C2

C2

GRADING PLAN

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

4

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 9
-
1

0
-
2

0
1

9

-

A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

J
U

N
I
P

E
R

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

S
I
T

E
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-



1

8

"

 

W

8

"

 

Ø

 

S

S

8

"

 

Ø

 

S

S

8" 45° DI BEND

10" 45° DI BEND

10" TO 8" REDUCER

8

"

 

Ø

 

W

I

-

P

V

C

4

8

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 
C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

2

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

2

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 

Ø

 

D

I

 

W

L

1

8

"

 

Ø

 

D

I

 

W

L

ARV

3

4

  POLY

-6.70

-6.88'

-5.44

-12.38

-11.71

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT INFORMATION

C3

SITE & UTILITY PLAN

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

4

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 9
-
1

0
-
2

0
1

9

-

A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

J
U

N
I
P

E
R

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

N
D

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-



8

"

 

Ø

 

S

S

4

8

"

 

C

M

P

-

S

D

1

8

"

 

Ø

 

D

I

 

W

L

-6.70

-5.44

-12.38

-11.71

C4

GRADING PLAN

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

4

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 9
-
1

0
-
2

0
1

9

-

A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

J
U

N
I
P

E
R

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
A

N
D

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-

ELEVATION PLAN

LANDSCAPE PLAN





Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 9/12/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 9-

19, filed by KLB Enterprises, LLC., which would allow for a bar to be located 

within the Central Business District, specifically 548 Commercial Street, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: As required by Elko City Code 3-2-10(5)(C) any new 

business such as a bar within the Central Business District requires a Conditional 

Use Permit. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 9-19 

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated 

September 16, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See staff report dated September 16, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  KLB Enterprises, LLC 

780 Aesop Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815 

alewis@frontiernet.net 

 





Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: September 16, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 1, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 9-19
APPLICANT: KLB Enterprises, LLC.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Within the CBD, any new business involving activities which are reasonably likely to discourage
other businesses through light, noise, odors, types and levels of activity, or the creation of a
nuisance, such as (without limitation) auto and truck service and repair facilities; mobile home,
recreational vehicle and truck sales lots; gas service stations; miniwarehousing facilities;
veterinary clinics; bars; and other uses determined by the city to have similar impacts, shall be
required to first obtain a conditional use permit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-343-006

PROPERTY SIZE: 2,500 sq. ft.

EXISTING ZONING: C –General Commercial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: MU-DWTN (Mixed Use Downtown)

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as Commercial Land Use

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by Commercial zoned property, developed land to the south,
east and west and Central Business District parking corridor to the north.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently developed.
 The property is fairly flat.
 The property is accessed from Commercial Street.
 The property is not in a flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-10 Commercial Zoning District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

 The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
10(B)(5)(c).

 There are no other conditional uses on the property.
 The property is located in the Redevelopment Area, Central Business District.
 The land is not owned by the applicant but the applicant has permission from the property

owner to apply for the Conditional Use Permit.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas designates the area as Mixed Use Downtown.



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 3 of 7

2. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of
the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

3. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation

1. The Master Plan identifies Commercial Street as a Commercial Industrial Collector.
2. The site has pedestrian access along Commercial Street.
3. Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates

vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent
land uses.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and
existing transportation infrastructure.

CITY OF ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN
1. The property is located within the Redevelopment Area and more specifically the Central

Business District.
2. Redevelopment goals and objectives:

 To promote and insure public safety and welfare; to eliminate and prevent the
spread of blight and deterioration, and the conservation, rehabilitation and
redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area in accord with the Master Plan, the
Redevelopment Plan and local codes and ordinances

 To promote and support a pedestrian oriented downtown; and, to achieve an
environment reflecting a high level of concern for architectural, landscape, and
urban design and land use principles appropriate for attainment of the
objectives of the Redevelopment Plan.

 To ensure adequate vehicular access and circulation; to retain and sustain
existing businesses by means of redevelopment and rehabilitation activities,
and encourage cooperation and participation of owners, businesses and public
agencies in the revitalization of the Redevelopment Area.

 To promote historic and cultural interest in the Redevelopment Area; and,
encourage investment by the private sector in the development and
redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area by eliminating impediments to such
development and redevelopment.

 To achieve Plan conformance and advancement through re-planning, redesign
and the redevelopment of areas which are stagnant or improperly used.

3. The proposed development repurposes the existing vacant building.

The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the Redevelopment Plan.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for City wells.



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 4 of 7

The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed use is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in conformance with
ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-10(B)(5).

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-10 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-10(B)(5) Within the CBD, any new business involving activities which are
reasonably likely to discourage other businesses through light, noise, odors, types and
levels of activity, or the creation of a nuisance, such as (without limitation) auto and truck
service and repair facilities; mobile home, recreational vehicle and truck sales lots; gas
service stations; miniwarehousing facilities; veterinary clinics; bars; and other uses
determined by the city to have similar impacts, shall be required to first obtain a
conditional use permit

2. Height Restrictions: All structures within the C general commercial zoning district must



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 5 of 7

comply with the height and other requirements of the current city airport master plan, to
the extent the plan applies to that location.

3. The property doesn’t abut a residential zone so therefore is not required to comply with
screen wall requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-3(J).

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and
conditions for the CUP.

The proposed use is in conformance with the development standards of this section of code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

1. All principal permitted uses occupying basement floor area, ground level or first story
floor area or second story floor area, or any combination thereof, and which are situated
on property located within four hundred feet (400') of the Central Business District (CBD)
public parking corridor, are exempted from providing required off street parking.

The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 6 of 7

2. The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master
Plan and existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

4. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the proposed use to be in
conformance to section 3-2-10 of the Elko city code.

5. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the proposed use to be in
conformance with sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, and 3-2-18 of the Elko city code.

6. The proposed use conforms to section 3-8 of Elko city code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 9-19 with the following conditions:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant KLB Enterprises, LLC. for a bar establishment
subject to compliance with all conditions imposed by a conditional use permit.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use (bar
establishment) and to the specific property (548 Commercial Street) for which it is issued.
However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use
permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use,
signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with
the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable
and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by
the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the
responsibility of the property owner.

3. CUP 9-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the business
license is issued for the bar.

4. Signage will require review and comment by the Redevelopment Agency prior to approval
by the City.

5. Applicant shall install and maintain exterior security lighting that illuminates both the
Commercial Street frontage and the alleyway adjacent to and including the rear exit.  The
security lighting shall be sufficient to make easily discernible the appearance and conduct
of all persons and patrons in the vicinity of the front and rear entrances, and shall be
positioned so as not to cause excessive glare for persons located outside of the vicinity of
the front and rear entrances, such as pedestrians, motorists, and owners and occupants of
neighboring properties.

6. Business hours to be determined as appropriate by the Planning Commission. Elko Police
Department recommends opening time on Friday and Saturday of 4:00 p.m. or later and
close time of 2:00 a.m. (following day) and an opening time on all other days of the week
of 4:00 p.m. or later and close time of 1:00 a.m.(following day).

7. Applicant shall remove all bottles, cans, trash, broken glass, debris, and bodily fluids from
abutting properties upon closing on each day applicant's business is open.



CUP 9-19
KLB Enterprises, LLC

Page 7 of 7

8. Applicant shall maintain outdoor receptacles in the rear of the property for the collection
of garbage, refuse and waste of adequate capacity and in sufficient number to hold all
garbage, refuse and waste that accumulates between removal or disposal.

Police Department:

1. Communicate effectively and proactively with Elko Police Department regarding
management and safety of the business, such as; provide notice as to management or
supervision changes, problems with security, changes with lighting, camera systems,
security, weapons polices, etc.

2. Professional trained security certified in the State of Nevada are required to be on staff
during business hours.

3. Metal detectors at entrance are required.
4. Zero tolerance of employee consumption of alcohol while they are on shift.
5. Security cameras are required and a minimum of ten days stored video footage from the

security system to be maintained at all times.























W
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n

g
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
C

o
m

m
e
r
c
i
a
l
\
T
o

n
y
 
L
e
w

i
s
\
G

-
S
p

o
t
 
2
0
1
9
\
0
1
 
U

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
G

1
.
1
 
C

o
v
e
r
 
S
h

e
e
t
 
0
1
.
d

w
g

,
 
8
/
2
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
3
:
0
3
:
0
4
 
P

M



W
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n

g
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
C

o
m

m
e
r
c
i
a
l
\
T
o

n
y
 
L
e
w

i
s
\
G

-
S
p

o
t
 
2
0
1
9
\
0
3
 
U

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
S
D

 
1
.
1
 
S
i
t
e
 
P

l
a
n

 
0
1
.
d

w
g

,
 
8
/
2
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
3
:
0
1
:
3
1
 
P

M



W
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n

g
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
C

o
m

m
e
r
c
i
a
l
\
T
o

n
y
 
L
e
w

i
s
\
G

-
S
p

o
t
 
2
0
1
9
\
0
4
 
U

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
A

 
1
.
0
 
-
 
L
o

w
e
r
 
F
l
o

o
r
 
P

l
a
n

.
d

w
g

,
 
8
/
2
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
2
:
5
9
:
4
0
 
P

M





W
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n

g
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
C

o
m

m
e
r
c
i
a
l
\
T
o

n
y
 
L
e
w

i
s
\
G

-
S
p

o
t
 
2
0
1
9
\
0
7
 
U

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
A

2
.
1
 
e
x
t
e
r
i
o

r
 
p

h
o

t
o

s
 
0
1
.
d

w
g

,
 
8
/
2
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
2
:
5
6
:
4
5
 
P

M



Agenda Item # I.A.4 

Created on 9/12/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

2-19, Ordinance No. 845, specifically an amendment to Title 3, Chapter 4, Section 1 

of the Elko City Code entitled “Planning Commission” and matters related thereto. 

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: NRS 278.040 was revised in 1985 and Elko City Code needs 

to be revised to reflect those changes. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance 845 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an 

ordinance which approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2-19 of the Elko City 

Code specifically Section 3-4-1 
 

9. Findings: 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  





1

CITY OF ELKO
ORDINANCE NO. 836

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3 (ZONING REGULATIONS), CHAPTER 4
(PLANNING COMMISSION), SECTION 1 (CREATED; APPOINTMENT; MEMBERS;
COMPENSATION; TERM; REMOVAL; VACANCIES) TO BE CONSISTENT WITH

NRS 278.040(1)

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend the City Code to amend the Code to reflect
statutory requirements for membership on the planning commission;

WHEREAS, the City of Elko Section 1 was consistent with the NRS 278.040 when enacted in
1973; and

WHEREAS, the requirements for membership on planning commission was subsequently
amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO,
NEVADA

For amendment purposes, words which are in blue, bold and underlined are additions to the
Ordinance, and words which are lined through are deleted from the Ordinance.

Section 1: Title 3, Chapter 4, Section 1 is hereby added to read as follows:

3-4-1: CREATED; APPOINTMENT; MEMBERS; COMPENSATION; TERM;
REMOVAL; VACANCIES:

A. Created; Membership; Appointment: There is hereby created a Planning Commission in and for
the City, to be known as the Elko Planning Commission. This commission shall consist of seven
(7) members. The members of the commission shall be appointed by the Mayor, with the
approval of the City Council. The members shall hold no other public office, except that one such
member may be a member of the Zoning Board of Adjustment. The members must not be
members of the governing body of the city or county. Members shall be eligible for
reappointment.

B. Compensation: All members of the commission shall serve as such without compensation
excepting reasonable traveling expenses made necessary in the fulfillment of their duties.

C. Terms: The terms of the members first appointed shall be three (3) years for two (2) members, two
(2) years for two (2) members and one year for two (2) members. The Mayor shall designate the
terms of the respective members first appointed at the time of appointment. Thereafter, the term
of each member shall be four (4) years or until his successor takes office.

D. Removal: Members may be removed, after public hearing, by a majority vote of the City Council for
inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance of office.



2

E. Vacancies: Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the
unexpired term.

F. Absences from From Meetings: Absence of an appointed member for four (4) consecutive regular
meetings without the formal consent of the Planning Commission shall be deemed to constitute a
retirement of that appointed member, and the vacancy thus created shall be filled thereafter by
the Mayor by the appointment of a successor to fill the unexpired term of office.

Section 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict

Section 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason
be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
invalidity, unenforceability or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this
ordinance.

Section 4: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage
in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one
publication.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ________, 2019 by the following vote of
the Elko City Council.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN: None

APPROVED this _____ day of _________, 2019.

CITY OF ELKO

BY:
REECE KEENER, Mayor

ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk



Agenda Item: I.B.1 

Created on 9/13/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 9-19, filed by Bailey 

& Associates, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Cambridge Estates 

involving the proposed division of approximately 8.02 acres of property into 35 lots 

and 1 remainder parcel for residential development within the R1 (Single Family 

Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISC. ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located at the northeast corner of Celtic 

Way and El Armuth Drive. (APN 001-660-041) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report, Final Map, 

Construction Plans 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the 

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with 

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install 

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the 

requirements of this Chapter, and conditionally approve Final Map 9-19 with 

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated September 13, 2019. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated September 13, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey & Associates, LLC 

Jon Bailey  

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

 





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: September 13, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 1, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 9-19
APPLICANT: Bailey & Associates, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Cambridge Estates

A Final Map for the division of approximately 8.02 acres into 35 lots for single family
residential development within an R1 (Single Family Residential) zoning district and 1
remainder lot to be dedicated to the City of Elko for drainage and utility easements.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-660-041

PARCEL SIZE: 2.235 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Cambridge Estates has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Cambridge Estates Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Cambridge Estates Tentative Map.
4. No phasing was shown on the Tentative Map.
5. Under the conditional approval of the Tentative Map, a modification of standards was

granted for lot widths on Lots 7-10, 13, and 14 and for lot size on Lots 29 and 35.
6. The subdivision is located on APN 001-660-041.
7. The proposed subdivision consists of 35 residential lots with 1 remainder lot to be

dedicated to the City of Elko for drainage and utility easements.
8. The total subdivided area is approximately 8.02 acres.
9. The proposed density is 4.36 units per acre.
10. Approximately 1.318 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
11. Approximately 0.492 acres are offered for dedication for drainage and utility easements.
12. The property is located on the northeast corner of Celtic Way and El Armuth Drive.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North (County): Agricultural-Residential (AR) / Developed
 South: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Partially Developed
 East: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 West (County): Agricultural-Residential (AR) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The area abuts previous residential development on all sides.
 The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where

possible.
 The property will be accessed off of Celtic Way.



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 3 of 8

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located outside of any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.  A modification of standards for lot widths and areas was granted with the
conditional approval of the Tentative Map.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is located adjacent to a city boundary, which is shown on the Final

Map.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided.  Civil improvement plans have been

approved.  Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 5 of 8

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final

Map.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final

Map.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, but no written approval has been received.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process. A Modification of Standards for lot widths and areas for
individual lots was approved during that process.

Based on the Modification of Standards granted under the Tentative Map application, the
proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
permits in accordance with this section of City code.



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
Celtic Way and Newcastle Circle right-of-ways.

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process. A Modification of Standards for lot widths and areas on
individual lots was approved during that process.

Based on the Modification of Standards for lot widths and area granted under the Tentative Map
application, the proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Cambridge Estates has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

5. Based on the Modification of Standards for lot widths and areas granted under the
Tentative Map application, the proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9
through 3-3-16 (inclusive).



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 7 of 8

6. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

9. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

10. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

11. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

12. Based on the Modification of Standards for lot widths and areas for particular lots granted
under the Tentative Map application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-
2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City code.

13. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Cambridge Estates is approved for 35 single family residential lots and
1 remainder lot.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Grading shall not commence prior to approval of the construction plans by the Nevada
Department of Environmental Protection.



Final Map 9-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 8 of 8

7. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

8. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

9. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. Approval of the Tentative Map by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection is
required prior to scheduling the Final Map for City Council approval.























































Agenda Item I.B.2 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 4-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-001, consisting of an area 

approximately 52 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: September 24, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 4-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

JM Capriola Co. Inc. 

500 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: September 23, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 1, 2019
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 4-19 through 10-19
APPLICANT: City of Elko
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-343-001, 001-343-002, 001-343-003,

001-343-004, 001-343-005, 001-343-006, & 001-
343-007

Vacation of the southeasterly portion of Commercial Street between 5th and 6th Street.
Each property varies in dimension of area to be vacated.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 4-19 to 10-19
City of Elko

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-343-001, 001-343-002, 001-343-003, 001-343-
004, 001-343-005, 001-343-006, & 001-343-007

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Mixed Use Downtown

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed, Commercial

BACKGROUND:
1. The properties have been developed as commercial land use.
2. City Council made a motion to vacate the encroachments into Commercial Street at their

meeting September 24, 2019 and referred the matter to Planning Commission for their
review.

3. The area proposed to be vacated varies in square footage for each property as each
building has different encroachments into the right-of-way.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: C- General Commercial / Developed
East: C- General Commercial / Developed
South: C- General Commercial / Developed
West: C- General Commercial / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The properties are currently developed.
Commercial Street is currently a 60’ right-of-way.
There are +/- 12’ wide sidewalk along Commercial Street adjacent to the properties.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

NRS 278.479 to 278.480 inclusive

1. 278.480(4) If any right-of-way or easement required for a public purpose that is owned
by a city or a county is proposed to be vacated, the governing body, or the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if authorized to take final action by the
governing body, shall, not less than 10 business days before the public hearing described
in subsection 5.



VACATION 4-19 to 10-19
City of Elko

Page 3 of 4

2. NRS 278.480 (5) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, if, upon public hearing,
the governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if
authorized to take final action by the governing body, is satisfied that the public will not
be materially injured by the proposed vacation, it shall order the street or easement
vacated. The governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other
designee, if authorized to take final action by the governing body, may make the order
conditional, and the order becomes effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed. An applicant or other person aggrieved by the decision of the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee may appeal the decision in accordance
with the ordinance adopted pursuant to NRS 278.31895.

3. Per NRS 278.480(6) Public utility companies will be notified of the vacation on
September 25, 2019 via first class mail.

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. C- General Commercial Zoning District is listed as a corresponding zoning district for

Mixed Use Downtown.
3. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area is accessed from Commercial Street.
2. Commercial Street is classified as an Industrial Commercial Collector.
3. Commercial Street has +/- 12’ wide sidewalks.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

 The area is located within the Redevelopment Area.
 The proposed vacation doesn’t relate to parking or other elements which are part of the

Redevelopment Plan.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Redevelopment Plan.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 8-7 STREET VACATION PROCEDURES

1. If it is determined by a majority vote of the city council that it is in the best interest of the
city and that no person will be materially injured thereby, the city council, by motion,
may propose the realignment, change, vacation, adjustment or abandonment of any street
or any portion thereof. In addition, any abutting owner desiring the vacation of any street
or easement or portion thereof shall file a petition in writing with the city council and the
city council shall consider said petition as set forth above.

 The City Council made a motion at their meeting on September 24, 2019 and
referred the matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration.



VACATION 4-19 to 10-19
City of Elko

Page 4 of 4

2. Except for a petition for the vacation or abandonment of an easement for a public utility
owned or controlled by the city, the petition or motion shall be referred to the planning
commission, which shall report its findings and recommendations thereon to the city
council. The petitioner shall, prior to the consideration of the petition by the planning
commission, pay a filing fee to the city in an amount established by resolution of the city
council and included in the appendix to this code.

 The filing fee was paid by the applicant.

3. Whenever any street, easement or portion thereof is proposed to be vacated or
abandoned, the city council shall notify by certified mail each owner of property abutting
the proposed vacation or abandonment and cause a notice to be published at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the city setting forth the extent of the proposed
vacation or abandonment and setting a date for public hearing, which date may be not
less than ten (10) days and not more than forty (40) days subsequent to the date the notice
is first published.

4. Order of City Council: Except as provided in subsection E of this section, if, upon public
hearing, the City Council is satisfied that the public will not be materially injured by the
proposed vacation or abandonment, and that it is in the best interest of the city, it shall
order the street vacated or abandoned. The city council may make the order conditional,
and the order shall become effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed.

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code.

FINDINGS

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component.

 The property proposed for vacation is located within the Redevelopment Area.

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

 The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Elko
City Code 8-7.

 The proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of
the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following conditions:

1. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to
the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.



























Agenda Item I.B.3 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 5-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-002, consisting of an area 

approximately 101 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 5-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Jacques Errecart 

516 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

















Agenda Item I.B.4 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 6-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-003, consisting of an area 

approximately 50 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 6-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Patray Assets LLP 

425 Rocky Rd. 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 

















Agenda Item I.B.5 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 7-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-004, consisting of an area 

approximately 50 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 7-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Ace Glass Company 

536 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 

 

















Agenda Item I.B.6 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 8-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-005, consisting of an area 

approximately 50 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 8-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Cowboy Arts and Gear Museum 

500 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 

















Agenda Item I.B.7 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 9-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-006, consisting of an area 

approximately 53 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 9-19 based on facts, findings, 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Gremel & Reutner Properties Inc. 

P.O. Box 2594 

Elko, NV 89803 

 

 

















Agenda Item I.B.8 

Created on 9/19/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 10-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the 

Commercial Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-007, consisting of an area 

approximately 147 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: A recent survey has been submitted to the City of Elko 

showing an encroachment of their building into Commercial Street right-of-way. 

Further surveying has determined that most of the 600 block has encroachments 

into the Commercial Street right-of-way and therefore the City of Elko is the 

applicant for the vacation. CL 
 

6. Budget Information:  
 

Appropriation Required: N/A 

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name:  N/A 
 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display map, Staff Memo 
 

9. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution, which conditionally approves Vacation No. 10-19 based on facts, 

findings, and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated September 23, 2019.  
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 
 

12. Council Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  

 

Shigamo Development Inc. 

2002 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 

















































Elko County Planning Commission
540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko, Nevada 89801
Phone (775) 738-6816   Fax (775) 738-4581
www.elkocountynv.net

COMMISSIONERS
John Geary

Dena M. Hartley
David Hough

Mike Judd
Jack Larason

Richard Genseal 
Mark Wetmore 

SENIOR PLANNER
Corey L. Rice, PLS, WRS
GIS/CADD OPERATOR

Peggy Pierce-Fitzgerald, CFM

PUBLIC     MEETING     NOTICE
The Elko County Planning Commission, County of Elko, State of
Nevada, will meet on Thursday, September 19, 2019, in the Nannini
Administration Building, Suite 102, 540 Court Street, Elko, Nevada
89801 at 5:15 PM.  Pacific Time Zone

Attached with this Notice is the Agenda for said meeting of the Board.
This Notice is posted pursuant to NRS 241 as amended by the 2017 Legislature and is to be posted at
the following places no later than three full working days before the meeting:

ELKO COUNTY MANAGER’S OFFICE
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
ELKO CITY HALL
ELKO COUNTY WEBSITE: www.elkocountynv.net

        _                                                          
ROBERT K. STOKES
Elko County Manager



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
September 19, 2019
Page | 2

WELCOME TO AN ELKO COUNTY BOARD OR COMMISSION MEETING!
We are pleased you are interested in a meeting of one of Elko County’s Boards or Commissions. 
Below is some basic information about our meetings and procedures for you to participate in your
government.

AGENDAS
The agenda is available  on the Elko County website  at www.elkocountynv.net.  Hard copies are made
available  at the meeting, upon request at the County Manager’s Office  or posted as per NRS 241. 
Meetings are broadcast live  from our website , under the Meetings tab on the home page of the website
and then under Agendas, Videos, etc.  You can also click the Watch Our Meetings tab on the right side of
the home page.  Videos of the meeting are available  within 24 hours of the end of the meeting.  Minutes,
when finalized and approved by the Board/Commission, are also posted to that page.  

PUBLIC COMMENT
The public’s participation in our meetings is valued and appreciated.  The Board/Commission can only
take action on items that are listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting.  During
Comments by the General Public, speakers may address matters not listed on the agenda.  The Open
Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comment by the Commissioners, but no
deliberation on a matter can be considered without notice  to the public.  Public comment will be called for
on all agenda items marked For Possible  Action. 

If you are planning to speak during the meeting, please sign the sign-in-sheet at the back of the meeting
room.  This helps our recording clerk get the correct spelling of your name.  When comments are called
for, please approach the podium and state  your name and who you represent.  

If submitting comments or information on an agenda item, please submit to the County Manager’s Office
as soon as possible  in order to provide opportunity for Board/Commission members to review and to
avoid possible  delays in a decision if not all information is presented previous to the start of a meeting.  If
information is presented at the meeting, you need to provide at least 10 copies, making sure to submit a
copy to the recording secretary for the official public record.  All information submitted becomes part of
the public record and is added to the backup information for that agenda item on our website  with 24
hours of the adjournment of the meeting.

Another avenue for making comments on agenda items, especially if you can’t make a meeting, is called
e-Comment.  If you open the agenda under the process described above, you will find a link by the
agenda called e-Comment.  Click on the link and follow the directions to register to comment and you are
set to comment on specific agenda items.  Please note  that the e-comment period for a specific agenda
closes 24 hours before the start of the meeting to allow those comments to be transmitted to our
Board/Commission members and recording staff.  Those reports are also uploaded to our agenda on the
website .

CONSENT AGENDA
Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and are normally approved
by one motion without extensive discussion.  If a Board/Commission member wishes to comment or
discuss a particular item, that item can be removed from the consent agenda and considered as a
separate  action during the meeting.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
September 19, 2019
Page | 3

ELKO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA MEETING
THE NANNINI ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, SUITE 102,
540 COURT STREET, ELKO, NEVADA 89801.

5:15 PM   Pacific Time Zone
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Thursday, September 19, 2019

IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRS 241, THE COMMISSION MAY: (I) CHANGE THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA, (II) COMBINE
TWO OR MORE AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION, (III) REMOVE AN ITEM FROM THE AGENDA OR DELAY
DISCUSSION RELATING TO AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA AT ANY TIME, (IV) AND IF THE AGENDA IS NOT
COMPLETED, RECESS THE MEETING AND CONTINUE ON ANOTHER SPECIFIED DATE AND TIME.    THE PUBLIC CAN
COMMENT ON ANY AGENDA ITEM BY BEING ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE CHAIR WHILE THE COMMISSION
CONSIDERS THAT AGENDA ITEM.
__________________________________________________________________________________

POSTING
This agenda is posted pursuant to NRS 241 as amended by the 2017 Legislature and was posted at the
following locations no later than 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time Zone), on September 16, 2019: ELKO COUNTY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, ELKO COUNTY MANAGER’S OFFICE, ELKO COUNTY
COURTHOUSE, ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY, ELKO CITY HALL, ELKO COUNTY WEBSITE
(www.elkocountynv.net), STATE OF NEVADA’s PUBLIC NOTICE WEBSITE (https://notice.nv.gov).

REQUEST FOR AGENDA INFORMATION
The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241 by contacting Corey Rice at
(775) 748-0214 or via email to crice@elkocountynv.net or, Peggy Pierce Fitzgerald at (775) 748-0215 or via
email to pfitzgerald@elkocountynv.net.  Materials are available from the Elko County Planning and Zoning
Office, Nannini Administration Building, located at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko, Nevada 89801 or on the
Elko County website at www.elkocountynv.net. 

NOTICE OF THE APPEAL PROCESS
Anyone aggrieved by an action of this Planning Commission may appeal such decision to the Elko County
Board of County Commissioners within 10 calendar days of said action.  An appeal form may be obtained from
the Division of Planning and Zoning located at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, in Elko.  When completed, return the
appeal form with the required $250.00 filing fee to the Division of Planning and Zoning within the 10 calendar
day period.

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are
requested to notify the Elko County Planning Commission in writing at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko,
Nevada 89801, email pfitzgerald@elkocountynv.net or crice@elkocountynv.net or by calling (775) 738-6816.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
September 19, 2019
Page | 4

PROCEDURES
The public will be given the opportunity to comment on any agenda item by being acknowledged by the chair
prior to action being taken by the Planning Commission.

Breaks and recess actions shall be called for at the pleasure of the Commission rather than by agenda schedule.
 Please place your cell phones on manner mode.

"FOR POSSIBLE ACTION" identifies an action item subject to a vote of the Commission.

A.    CALL TO ORDER AT 5:15 P.M.

B.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

C.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES

C.1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion and consideration of approval of minutes from July 18, 2019.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
ECPC July 18, 2019 Minutes Draft.pdf

D.    COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those
comments.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.  
NON-ACTION

E.    PUBLIC HEARINGS

E.1. Discussion and consideration of Application 19-6000-0004, Douglas C. & Penny L. Peifer requesting a
front yard reduction from fifty feet (50') to sixteen feet (16') in a Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning
district for a detached garage/shop.

APPLICATION:  An application submitted by Douglas C. and Penny L. Peifer requesting a variance
request for a front yard reduction from fifty feet (50’) to sixteen feet (16’) in a Agricultural Residential
(AR) zoning district for a detached garage/shop per ECC 4-9-5.  
LOCATION:  APN 023-020-005.  Located in the Pleasant Valley Estates Subdivision, Block T,
Lot 5, as recorded in the Office of the Elko County Recorder as File No. 5976.  Located in the
N½ of Section 26, Township 33 North, Range 57 East, M.D.B. & M.
Physical address:  344 Diamond Lady Lane, Spring Creek, NV.
APPLICANT/OWNER:  Douglas C. & Penny L. Peifer



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
September 19, 2019
Page | 5

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

19-6000-0004, Douglas Peifer_Staff Report.pdf

F.    OTHER BUSINESS
NON-ACTION

G.    STAFF UPDATE AND COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS
This time is devoted to comments by Elko County Planning Commissioners and/or County Staff for general
information or update purposes.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.
NON-ACTION

H.    COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those
comments.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.  
NON-ACTION

I.    ADJOURNMENT

E-COMMENT

POSTING CERTIFICATE

ELKO COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER.


